
 

Philomath City Council Minutes of 11/25/2013  2013: Page 46 

PHILOMATH COMMON COUNCIL 1 
MINUTES 2 

November 25, 2013 3 
 4 
 5 
1. 

The common council of the City of Philomath was called to order on Monday, November 7 
25, 2013, at 7:00 PM in the Philomath City Hall Council Chambers by Mayor Rocky 8 
Sloan. 9 

CALL TO ORDER 6 

 10 
Present

 13 

: Mayor Rocky Sloan, Councilors Nolan Bartlow, Matt Bierek, Charla Koeppe, 11 
Sean Manning and Jason Leonard. 12 

Staff

 17 

: Randy Kugler, City Manager; Jim Brewer, City Attorney; Ken Elwer, Chief of 14 
Police; Joan Swanson, Finance Director; Kevin Fear, Public Works Director and 15 
Ruth Post, City Recorder. 16 

2. 
2.1 City Council Minutes – October 14, 2013 19 
CONSENT AGENDA 18 

2.2 City Council Minutes – November 5, 2013 20 
2.3 City Council Minutes – November 7, 2013 21 
2.4 City Council Minutes – November 8, 2013 22 
2.5 City Council Minutes – November 20, 2013 23 
2.6 Public Works Committee Minutes – November 7, 2013 24 

 25 
MOTION: Councilor Koeppe moved, Councilor Bierek second, to approve the 26 
consent agenda and the council agenda for November 25, 2013, as presented. 27 
Motion APPROVED 6-0 (Yes: Bartlow, Bierek, Koeppe, Leonard, Manning, and 28 
Sloan; No: None.) 29 
 30 

3. 
3.1 None. 32 
ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 31 

 33 
4. 

4.1 
VISITORS/PETITIONS 34 

Kay Sams, Philomath, OR

 52 

 – Ms. Sams explained her complaint against Chief 35 
Ken Elwer over his disturbing lack of concern about canine vehicular entrapment 36 
and the risk of succumbing to heat related trauma. She stated she wrote the 37 
complaint in the form of a letter to the editor of the Gazette Times and stated the 38 
G-T will run the letter in the spring if Chief Elwer doesn’t improve his willingness 39 
to uphold Oregon animal cruelty statutes by then. Ms. Sams stated she had met 40 
with the City Manager who had suggested ways that she could improve public 41 
awareness of this issue, such as through the City’s newsletter. She stated that 42 
her article could also include a statement that animal cruelty statutes would be 43 
enforced, thereby forcing the Police Department to be obligated to respond. She 44 
recommended a citizen task force to provide routine parking lot checks of 45 
victimized dogs. She also requested that the Police Department set up public 46 
outreach programs to educate school aged children and parents. Ms. Sams 47 
related a statement from a Portland veterinary hospital that there were a lot of 48 
cases of heat related trauma in Portland this year. She stated that the Police 49 
Department claims to have zero tolerance for canine vehicular entrapment and 50 
she plans to make sure that in the future, their actions speak louder than words. 51 



 

Philomath City Council Minutes of 11/25/2013  2013: Page 47 

5. 
5.1 Annual Fiscal Audit – Matt Graves, Audit Partner, Pauly Rogers and Company, 2 

PC – Mr. Graves reviewed the City’s audit letter, including the purpose and 3 
method of the audit. He stated the City was given a clean opinion, with no 4 
reservations, on the financial statements provided by City staff. He stated this 5 
was the best opinion available. He added that there were no exceptions or issues 6 
requiring comment with regard to State minimum standards. He explained 7 
changes in terminology due to regulation changes from last year’s audit to this 8 
year’s. He stated no problems were found with this audit and there were no 9 
disagreements with management regarding financial policies. He stated that 10 
typically the first year of an audit is more difficult but there were no issues 11 
whatsoever associated with this audit. He described upcoming changes due to 12 
GASB 68 beginning 2014-2015. He described government body monitoring 13 
policies that the Council may request to be implemented. Mr. Graves described 14 
clarity changes in the audit report. He thanked Finance Director Swanson and 15 
her staff for all of their assistance during the audit and in preparing the report. 16 

PRESENTATIONS 1 

 17 
5.2 Philomath Downtown Association quarterly report – Kay McGee, President – 18 

Ms. McGee thanked the Council for their support of the PDA and distributed her 19 
quarterly report (Supplemental Agenda Item #5.2). She explained the Main Street 20 
Program review in early November. She stated this is a transitional year in some 21 
of the leadership for the PDA so the Main Street Program review was helpful. 22 
She stated it may be time for another Ford Foundation Leadership program to 23 
encourage new volunteer participation. Ms. McGee reviewed activities by the 24 
Design Committee, Promotions Committee, Public Arts Advisory Council, and 25 
Economic Restructuring Committee. 26 

 27 
6. 

6.1 City Manager – Mr. Kugler reported that the annual census report shows an 29 
increase of 5 new residents for a total of 4,625. He also reported on the news 30 
that Ray’s Market will be closing and the negative impact that has on the 31 
community. 32 

STAFF REPORTS 28 

 33 
6.2 Public Works Director – Mr. Fear reported that the Applegate Street Project is 34 

complete. He described problems that arose during the construction such as 35 
back-graded sewer laterals that flow the wrong direction additional sewer lines, 36 
and unanticipated asbestos disposal. Despite those issues, he stated the project 37 
still came in $85,000 below the bid price. He stated they did not line the sewer 38 
line from 26th to 30th after review of the TV report showed that it still had 15-20 39 
years of life left. He also reported that he has received a retirement resignation 40 
letter from Senior Utility Worker Joe Hall effective November 29. He stated that 41 
Joe and his diligence will be greatly missed. Mr. Fear said that there will be a 42 
retirement party scheduled for Mr. Hall at a later date.  43 

 44 
Mayor Sloan questioned what the plans are for the unused balance of the 45 
Applegate Street Project funds. Ms. Swanson and Mr. Fear explained the need to 46 
riprap the original sewer lagoons this summer. Ms. Swanson explained that this 47 
project will significantly help the life of those lagoons.  48 
 49 

6.3 City Recorder – No report. 50 
 51 

6.4 Finance Director – No report. 52 
 53 



 

Philomath City Council Minutes of 11/25/2013  2013: Page 48 

6.5 Police Chief – Chief Elwer reported he received six applications for the 1 
Sergeant’s position and testing will be held on December 12. He stated that the 2 
City worked with the County to acquire 10 portable radios for $58,000. Chief 3 
Elwer also reported on the status of the Council Goal to distribute emergency 4 
planning handbooks to all citizens. He stated 1,600 copies have been ordered 5 
and the local Boy Scouts will assist in distributing them to all of the homes in 6 
Philomath. 7 

 8 
6.6 City Attorney – No report. 9 

 10 
7. 

7.1 No reports. 12 
COUNCIL REPORTS 11 

 13 
8. 

8.1 City Council Appointment – Mr. Kugler reviewed the process to select a 15 
replacement for Josh Kvidt’s council position, as outlined in the Council agenda 16 
packet. He noted there are three applicants. Mayor Sloan requested that each of 17 
the applicants come forward. 18 

NEW BUSINESS 14 

 19 
Angie Baca, Philomath, OR

 23 

 – Ms. Baca explained her desire to return to the 20 
Council now that her family situation has stabilized. She stated she really 21 
enjoyed being on the City Council and serving the community. 22 

Don Cruise, Philomath, OR

 28 

 – Mr. Cruise stated his history as a teacher in 24 
Philomath and his passion for the community. He stated that he does currently 25 
serve on the School Board but feels he also has the ability to serve on the 26 
Council also. 27 

Ken Schaudt, Philomath, OR

 36 

 – Mr. Schaudt noted it’s not unusual for a former 29 
Mayor to come back and serve on the Council. He described the term limitation 30 
that required him to step down in 2012 after 10 years as Councilor and Mayor. 31 
He stated the strength in his service on the tri-county transportation planning 32 
organizations and the time he has served on those committees. He stated he 33 
actually preferred his time as a City Councilor more than as Mayor but felt that he 34 
could partner well with Mayor Sloan.  35 

Council voted by signed ballot. Angie Baca received the required majority vote of 37 
4 votes. Mayor Sloan thanked all of the applicants and stated that Ms. Baca will 38 
be seated at the December meeting. 39 
 40 

9. 
9.1 Ordinance #786 – Franchise agreement with Republic Services of Oregon 42 

and repealing Ordinance #568 – Mr. Kugler reviewed the new solid waste 43 
disposal franchise agreement ordinance.  44 

ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 41 

 45 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Yes: Bartlow, Bierek, Koeppe, Leonard, Manning and Sloan. 46 
No: None. Ordinance approved unanimously at first reading. 47 
 48 

10. 
10.1 Budget update memo – Mr. Kugler described this new tool that will be 50 

distributed to the Council and Budget Committee on a quarterly basis. Councilor 51 
Bierek questioned if this report would meet the recommendations made by the 52 
auditors for government body monitoring. Mr. Kugler stated it would. 53 

INFORMATION/CORRESPONDENCE 49 



 

Philomath City Council Minutes of 11/25/2013  2013: Page 49 

10.2 Downtown Streetscape Project update from MSA – No comments. 1 
10.3 CWACT Notes from October 24, 2013, meeting – No comments. 2 
10.4 Philomath Connection ridership for October 2013 – No comments. 3 
10.5 Website report for October 2013 – No comments. 4 
10.6 2013 Population Estimate from PSU – No comments. 5 
10.7 News article regarding streetlight retrofits – No comments. 6 

 7 
11. 

11.1 Adjournment –Seeing no further business, Mayor Sloan adjourned the meeting 9 
at 7:44 p.m. 10 

ADJOURNMENT 8 

 11 
 SIGNED:      ATTEST: 12 
 Rocky Sloan, Mayor     Ruth Post, MMC, City Recorder 13 


	PHILOMATH COMMON COUNCIL
	MINUTES
	November 25, 2013
	SIGNED:      ATTEST:
	Rocky Sloan, Mayor     Ruth Post, MMC, City Recorder

